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MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT, URBANIZATION AND CLIMATE CHANGE (MOEUCC)
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“Climate and Disaster Resilient Cities Project”
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CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR
Implementation Support Consultant for the Climate and Disaster Resilient Cities Project: Consultancy Services to Provide Technical and Legal Support to Property Owners for Resilient Housing Reconstruction/Retrofitting and Verification/Inspections of Retrofitting/Reconstruction Activities in Project Provinces (Kocaeli, Manisa, Tekirdağ)
Reference No:
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Addendum No.1 										3
Issued on: October 8, 2025

	REPLIES TO QUERIES AND CLARIFICATIONS NO: 1

	The provisions of this "Replies to Queries and Clarifications" are being issued to provide necessary clarifications on certain aspects of the Request for Proposal document in response to the queries or clarification requests raised during the pre-proposal conference or queries and clarification requests sent by the Shortlisted Consultants in writing or e-mail.


	No
	Query or Clarification Requested by the Shortlisted Consultants
	Reply of the Client
	Amendment in the RFP document is required
YES or NO

	1
	Could the Client clarify the criteria for "resilient housing"? Are there specific standards (nationa/international) to follow?
	Resilient structures are buildings constructed in compliance with existing national laws and regulations.
	NO

	2
	Are there preferred guidelines or methodologies for assesing climate and seismic risks (e.g. IBC,ISO standards, local codes)
	The project was prepared to transform structures declared risky under Law No. 6306.
	NO

	3
	Could the client provide any existing reports, studies, or baseline data regarding housing conditions in Kocaeli, Manisa and Tekirdağ?
	The necessary documents will be shared when needed.
	NO

	4
	Can the Client provide deadlines or a timetable for interim and final deliverables?
	This is stated in Article 12.1 of the TOR.
	NO

	5
	Are there templates or formats required for reports, presentations, or training materials?
	The main elements that must be included in the reports are specified in Article 12.1 of the TOR. The report formats must be prepared by the consulting firm following the signing of the contract and sent to us for approval. Changes may be made to the report formats during the process based on any deficiencies observed in their operation.
	NO

	6
	What is the expected frequency of progress reports and monitoring submissions?
	This is stated clearly in Article 12.1 of the TOR.
	NO

	7
	Will Key Experts' roles include field inspections or are they advisory only?
	Key Experts will conduct field inspections and provide consulting services to citizens who request them. 
	NO

	8
	What is the procedure for substituting Key Experts if necessary?
	In cases of necessity or if the administration deems the current key personnel unsuitable, the consulting firm shall send the resumes and social security records of the new key personnel to the administration and may replace its personnel following the approval. However, it should be noted that the proposed expert must at least meet the minimum qualifications requirement indicated in the ToR,
	NO

	9
	Are there restrictions on remote work for Key Experts or Non-Key Experts in the project areas?
	As the staff are expected to perform office and consulting work at the consultation offices to be opened in the project provinces, as well as conduct field inspections, remote work is not possible. Therefore, the consulting firm's staff will not be working remotely.
	NO

	10
	The TOR identifies "housing experience" as similar experience for evaluating Key Experts' CVs.
Please clarify:
a. Does "housing experience" include all superstructures (office buildings, schools, medical, commercial, social facilities)?
b. Or is the evaluation restricted to residential projects (apartment blocks, houses, villas, residential complexes)?
c. Please provide the explicit criteria for what is considered acceptable as housing experience.
	Experience of all superstructures will be evaluated as experience for Key Experts.
	NO

	11
	What types and numbers of counterpart staff will be provided?
	This is stated clearly in Article 8 of the TOR.
	NO

	12
	Will the Client provide office space, workstations, internet, and other basic facilities in each province?
	An explanation regarding the subject matter has been provided in the relevant TOR.
“The Consultant staff will be located in the Presidency’s information offices in Manisa, Tekirdağ and Kocaeli.”
“The Consultant will provide all kinds of tools, computers, equipment and all other materials required for technical-legal consultancy, reporting, monitoring and control services to be provided in Manisa, Tekirdağ and Kocaeli.”
	NO

	13
	Will local transport be provided for field visits?
	The consultant firm is responsible for transportation and vehicle provision during field visits to be conducted in the project provinces. In addition, the consultant firm accompany the Presidency staff during the field visits.
	NO

	14
	Will permits, security clearance, or access arrangements be provided for field inspections?
	When applying for the project, contractor companies have committed not to engage in any behavior that would hinder the site visits to be conducted, in accordance with the clause specified in the supplementary commitment letter outlined below.
"- The contractor and its subcontractors ), sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel shall allow inspectors appointed by the Urban Transformation Authority and the World Bank to inspect the work covered by the contract on site and to access the necessary documents (purchasing processes, accounts related to the implementation of the contract, records, and other documents)."
	NO

	15
	Is there a centralized repository for project data, background reports, and reference documents?
	All data and relevant reference documents will be provided to the Consultant after the signature of the Contract.
	NO

	16
	Are specific methodologies required for risk assesments (climate, seismic, housing)?
	Risk assessments will be made using the method specified within the scope of the law. It will not be the responsibility of the consultant to determine whether existing buildings are risky, but homeowners hire licensed companies for this assessment.
	NO

	17
	Is there a preferred format or template for resillience strategies or risk models? 
	ToR does not include tasks related to resilience strategies and risk models. It will not be the responsibility of the consultant to determine whether existing buildings are risky, but homeowners hire licensed companies for this assessment.
	NO

	18
	Stakeholder Engagement – Any specific expectations for workshops, consultations, or knowledge transfer sessions?
	The Consultant will be supported UTP PMU in stakeholder engagement, including communication with citizens and property owners. Workshops, consultations, and knowledge transfer will be organized as needed to ensure property owners, including vulnerable and female-headed households, are fully informed about contracts, construction processes, grievance procedures, and ESF and semi-annual reports. 
	NO

	19
	Policies & Mechanisms- Are there existing Client SEA/SH policies to integrate into the project?

	Yes. The Project will follow the World Bank’s Environmental and Social Framework (ESF), including requirements for SEA/SH prevention and response. The Consultant will integrate these requirements into all activities, ensuring consistency with WB policies and national legislation. Procedures and mechanisms are included in the TOR to align with Environmental and Social Commitment Plan (ESCP)[footnoteRef:2], Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF)[footnoteRef:3], Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP)[footnoteRef:4], Labor Management Procedure (LMP)[footnoteRef:5], and Resettlement Framework (RF)[footnoteRef:6], which have been prepared specifically for the CDRC Project and are publicy discloed on the UTP website.  [2:  ESCP Disclosed at: https://webdosya.csb.gov.tr/db/kentseldirenclilik/icerikler/escp-moeucc-eng-20230518143336.pdf]  [3:  ESMF Disclosed at: https://kentseldirenclilik.csb.gov.tr/ingilizce-dokumanlar-i-108261
]  [4:  SEP Disclosed at: https://kentseldirenclilik.csb.gov.tr/ingilizce-dokumanlar-i-108261
]  [5:  LMP Disclosed at: https://kentseldirenclilik.csb.gov.tr/ingilizce-dokumanlar-i-108261
]  [6:  RF Disclosed at: https://kentseldirenclilik.csb.gov.tr/ingilizce-dokumanlar-i-108261
] 

In addition, the consultant will be responsible for delivering the mandatory Code of Conduct training and the Gender-Based Violence and Sexual Harassment (SEA/SH) training required under the social framework. 
	NO

	20
	Reporting Obligations- Are there obligations to report SEA/SH incidents externally, beyond internal project management?

	Yes. All SEA/SH incidents will be reported to the UTP PMU and documented in monthly and semi-annual reports. Where applicable, incidents will also be communicated in accordance with the World Bank’s ESF requirements and national legislation. The Consultant will provide immediate notification to UTP PMU and ensure confidentiality and survivor-centered handling of cases.
	NO

	21
	Are there existing Client data management or IT security protocols to follow?
	The Consulting Firm will use the ARAAD system, which is the system used by the Presidency to carry out this project, and will be responsible for performing tasks and operations such as control, data entry, and uploading materials such as photographs.
	NO

	22
	Are certifications like ISO 27001 or GDPR compliance required?
	No, not required.
	NO

	23
	Could the Client confirm the basis of remuneration, payment schedule, and pre-financing provisions?
	The basis of the remuneration is in 16.2 of the ITC and 47.3 of the SCC.
The basis of the pre-financing provisions is in the 50.1(a) of the SCC. (Advance payment shall not be made.)
The payment plan will be based on the work plan and person/month realization proposed by the consultant.
	NO

	24
	Are there audit or reporting requirements for invoices or financial submissions?
	Invoices will be submitted along with the documents required for the progress payment.  There is no specific audit or reporting requirement other than the defined reports in ToR.
	NO

	25
	Is there a ceiling on reimbursable costs for travel, accommodation, or field activities
	There is no ceiling for reimbursable costs. In accordance with ITC 16.2, the financial offer will also include reimbursable and the total price offer will be the price including reimbursable.
	NO

	26
	How will the Client review and approve interim and final deliverables?
	As stated in the TOR under article 9. Implementation and Reporting Arrangements, Reports to be sent to the Presidency via email will be reviewed by the Presidency staff, and if deemed appropriate after review, three copies will be forwarded to the Presidency. Please see Article 26 and 27 of General Conditions of Contract.
	NO

	27
	What is the expected turnaround time for feedback on submitted deliverables?
	Depending on the content of the documents, the turnaround time is up to 15 business days.
	NO

	28
	Are there anticipated risks or constraints affecting data collection or field activities?
	When applying for the project, contractor companies have committed not to engage in any behavior that would hinder the site visits to be conducted, in accordance with the clause specified in the supplementary commitment letter outlined below.
"- The contractor and its subcontractors (whether declared to the contractor before the visit or not), sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel shall allow inspectors appointed by the Urban Transformation Authority and the World Bank to inspect the work covered by the contract on site and to access the necessary documents (purchasing processes, accounts related to the implementation of the contract, records, and other documents). "
	NO

	29
	Are there additional services beyond the TOR scope (e.g., GIS mapping, satellite imagery analysis, advanced modelling) expected by the Client?
	The consulting firm will carry out the necessary work and procedures within the scope of the TOR. In addition, it will work in close contact with the Presidency Project Management Unit and must fulfill the written requests of the Presidency staff without exceeding the scope of the TOR and contract.
	NO

	30
	Will the submission of applications by Property Owners be maintained throughout the entire project duration of 24 months, or will it be limited to a specific timeframe?
	
Applications made by Property Owners will be maintained throughout the 24-month project period.
	NO

	31
	Will all key and non-key experts be expected to work for the full 24 months, or can their deployment be scheduled in accordance with the Consultant’s work plan?
	Estimated input of Key Experts’ time-input: 588 person-months. This estimate is indicative and the Proposal shall be based on the Consultant’s own estimates for the same. Please see Article 14.1.3 of Data Sheet for missing time-input.
	NO

	32
	We kindly request an extension of two weeks for the preparation of a comprehensive and complete proposal.
	Bids preparation deadlines are determined in accordance with regulations. No extension is considered.
	NO

	33
	Regarding the Data Sheet clause 14.1.2, the time-input has given only for Key Experts as an estimated input of 588 person-months. However, there are many Non-Key Experts which has been stated in the table of section 8. Qualification Requirements of Key/Non-Key Experts in ToR. Will the given man/month input also be used for non-key experts, or will it not be used for them? Or will you provide additional man/month input specifically for the non-key experts? We kindly ask you to clarify this statement for the complete submission of the Proposal.
	This is stated in the ToR “Accordingly, the number of personnel planned to be employed for project provinces during the two-year contract period is planned to be approximately 588 man/month,”. So time input 588 person-months estimated for all experts (key and non-key). This estimate is indicative and the Proposal shall be based on the Consultant’s own estimates for the same. 
The Consultant’s Proposal must include minimum 588 staff-months of time-input for Key Experts.
For the evaluation and comparison of Proposals only, if a Proposal includes less than the required minimum time-input, the missing time-input (expressed in staff-month) is calculated as follows:
The missing time-input is multiplied by the highest remuneration rate for a Key Expert in the Consultant’s Proposal and added to the total remuneration amount. Proposals that quoted higher than the required minimum of time-input will not be adjusted.
	YES
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